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The Gorgas-Manly Historic District is in the heart of the University of 
A lab.ama campus. It encompasses approximately 12 square acres and includes 
eight buildings which range from Federal to Gothic Revival architecture.

The most outstanding of the buildings is the Gorgas i Home, a Federal 
style raised cottage with a Doric portico and curved staircases. It is con­ 
structed almost entirely without nails. The 18-inch thick w.aJLls_ are of hand­ 
made red brick-. The ground floor porch has four brick pillars connected at 
the top by flattened Romanesque arches. These support the four Doric columns 
on the main floor. The winding sandstone steps on either side of the first 
floor veranda are decorated with balustrades of cast-iron. The same pattern 
of iron grillwork extends across the veranda connecting with the balustrades 
of the stairs. There are four rooms on each floor divided by a wide hall. 
The ceilings are 12 '10" on the main floor and the long shuttered windows 
measure 6 1/2'. Some authorities feel that the Greek Revival portico was a 
later addition, probably added in the 1840' s.

Across from the Gorgas house are the four buildings of the quadrangle. 
They consist of Clark, Manly, Garland and Woods Hall. Clark, Manly and Gar­ 
land form one group and face Woods across the quadrangle. These three 
buildings were renovated in 1949 to remove the yellow paint which had cover­ 
ed the original red brick. The central building of this group is Clark Hall 
a large four-story Gothic building. The double tier of long windows with 
Gothic arches and the tall double doors with a Gothic pinnacle traced in the 
lights above give the building the appearance of having only two stories. 
This pinnacle is repeated at the center of the roof and is ornamented with 
four small columns. Turrets on the front corners are supported by modified 
Corinthian columns.

i . . - •

Garland and Manly flank either side of Clark Hall and are almost iden­ 
tical. Both are distinctly Gothic but more restrained to allow Clark to be 
the emphatic building of the group. The front. _amL side ro°f lines are orna­ 
mented with pinnacles, the edges of which are decorated by a pattern formed 
by brick work. Large Gothic windows are set into these pinnacles. The win­ 
dows on the lower floor of Garland Hall have been cemented up.

Woods Hall which faces Clark from across the quadrangle is a red brick 
three- stOTy~~tf="shaped structure. A graceful Neo-Gothic colonnade runs- the 
length of the ground floor and supports the porches upon which all the rooms 
of the upper stories open. Wrought iron railings connect the slender iron 
post which supports the outer edges of the porch.

The Round House is a small white stuccoed building of octagonal shape, 
marking the corner of the original quadrangle. Rectangular windows with 
shutters are on each side of the building except the entrance. The building 
is surmounted by battlements and has Gothic type dripstones above each of 
the windows.

The other two buildings of the historic district are Tuomey and Barnard 
Halls. These very similar buildings flank either side of the library which 
is directly behind the quadrangle. They are red_brick Gothic Revival build­

ngs
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Gorgas-Manly Historic District on the campus of the University of 
Alabama at Tuscaloosa encompasses a total of eight buildings, including two 
of the four which survived the Civil War; another of which was built to re­ 
place structures burned during the devastating Federal Army raid commanded 
by General John T. Croxton; and three others built in a flamboyant Gothic 
Revival style when Alabama was recovering from Reconstruction.

One of the buildings, the Gorgas Home, is listed in the Historic Am­ 
erican Buildings Survey.

The University of Alabama was chartered December 17, 1819, three days 
after the state was admitted to the Union. It was to be financed in part 
by the sale of 72 square miles of land granted by the U. S. government.

In 1828, architect William Nichols submitted plans for the campus to 
the state legislature. It^was an ambitious plan somewhat similar to the one 
Thomas Jefferson designed for the University of Virginia. However, only one 
of Nichols' original buildings, the Gorgas Home, survived the Civil War.

The Gorgas Home, completed in 1829, was the first erected on the new 
campus. It was used variously as the steward's home, a dining hall, a hos­ 
pital, and a post office before the Gorgases moved into it in 1879.

General Josiah Gorgas, who had been the Confederate Chief of Ordnance, 
was president of the University of Alabama, 1878-79. He resigned due to ill 
health, and the Board of Trustees asked him to accept the less arduous posi­ 
tion of librarian at which time he moved into the Gorgas House. His wife, 
Amelia Gayle Gorgas, was the daughter of Alabama goveiror and U. S. congress­ 
man, John Gayle.

Their son, William Crawford Gorgas, was named Surgeon General of the 
United States Army in 1915. He had gained world renown for his application 
of the knowledge gained by Walter ReTd about yellow fever, first in Havana 
and later in the Panama Canal Zone. The house was made a state shrine in 
1944 by the Alabama legislature to honor William Crawford Gorgas.

The Round House was built in 1860 when a military system was institutec 
to preserve order among the students. The Round House was used by cadets 
on guard duty. It is ironic that the only building erected for military 
purposes on the old campus was left untouched by the Union forces.
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8. Significance - Gorgas Manly Historic District

Woods Hall was the first building erected on the campus after the Civil 
War. G. M. Figh and Company of Montgomery was awarded the $63,367 contract to 
build the massive structure, and some of the bricks salvaged from the burned 
buildings were used. It was completed in 1868 before the Reconstruction 
government gained control of the state and named for Alva Woods, first presi­ 
dent of the University of Alabama. The building served first as the living 
quarters and classrooms for 180 cadets. It is now a classroom building.

After Woods Hall was completed, the university was taken from under contro 
of its board of trustees and became a political tool of the Alabama Reconstruc­ 
tion government.

Congress in 1884 donated 46,080 acres in restitution for the Croxton raid, 
largely due to the efforts of Senator John Tyler Morgan. With money realized 
from the sale of these lands, the University added three academic buildings, 
Manly, Clark, and Garland halls, completed the "Old Quadrangle."

Manly Hall was completed in 1886 and named for the second president of the 
universTFy. Clark Hall, completed in ,1886, was named for Willis G. Clark, a 
trustee and chairman of the building committee. Garland Hall, named for the 
university's third president, was completed in 1888.

Two other buildings in the district were completed in 1888, Tuomey Hall 
and Barnard Hall. Tuomey was named for Michael Tuomey, first state geologist 
(1848-57). Barnard Hall was named for Frederick A. P. Barnard, professor of 
mathematics and chemistry (1837-54) and later president of Columbia University. 
Barnard was chiefly responsible for establishing a chapter of Phi Beta Kappa 
at the University of Alabama. These two buildings now serve as headquarters 
for the Army and Air Force ROTC units, respectively.
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1. Gorgas House

2. ROTC - Air Force

3. Round House

4. ROTC - Army

5. Woods Hall
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The red lines enclose district ori- 
gnally suggested by Tuscaloosa 
preservationists. It was decided 
that the Presidents Mansion and the 
Observatory should be included in 
the same district. Being in the 
same area-Morgan Hall and Smith 
Hall were also included in the 
district.


